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A BRIEF HISTORY OF THE 50,000 WATT, CLEAR CHANNEL
VOICE OF THE MIDDLE WEST, WHO, DES MOINES

By George Davison

RECEPTION ROOM .

"WHO, Des Moines, began operations in April 1924 on 570 kHz with 500 watts. The station
=vas owned by Bankers Life, an insurance company which is now known as The Principal.
Company president, George Kuhns, promoted creation of the station.

e Studios and transmitter were on the top floor of the Liberty Building at 418 Sixth
Avenue in downtown Des Moines.
Kuhns chose the call letters WHO because at the time people searching the radio dial
for stations would ask, "Who is it?"

e WHO would identify itself during Bankers Life ownership as, "This is WHO - Who? -
Banker's Life, Des Moines."

e The song Who from the musical "Sunny' was used as a theme for the station.

o Power was increased to 1,000 watts, and then, to 5,000 watts. Based upon incomplete
records it appears that these power increases occurred in 1925.

e WHO became an NBC network affiliate on September 27, 1927. By this time the station






was broadcasting from 6:00 AM until Midnight.

in 1928 following creation of the Federal Radio Commission by the United States Congress,
WHO was ordered to share the frequency of 1000 kHz with WOC, Davenport. WOC was
o>wned by the Palmer College of Chiropractic, and it was the first commercial station in the
state of lowa. Both WHO and WOC protested the marriage, but the Federal Radio
Commission ordered the two stations to share time on 1000 kHz, each with 5,000 watts,
>ffective November 11, 1928. 1000 kHz is one of the eight clear channels assigned to Zone 4
under the FRC plan and other regulations.

e For about a year the two stations would alternate portions of the broadcast day. One
week WHO would be on during the day; WOC would be on at night. The next week, the
stations would operate on an opposite schedule.

o Bankers Life left the broadcasting business in 1930 when it sold WHO to Central
Broadcasting Company, an entity formed by B.J. Palmer and several associates to
acquire WHO.

During the early years of control of WHO by the Palmer interests, experimentation was
conduct to allow synchronous operation of the two stations. Telephone lines connected the
WHO and WOC transmitters. Modifications were made to the transmitters to improve
frequency stability. The two stations were on the air at the same time, broadcasting the same
programs. There was a serious problem with synchronous operation, however. Neither
station could be heard in an area about 30 miles wide half way between Des Moines and
Davenport.

While experiments continued with synchronous operation, Central Broadcasting Company
on October 7, 1930, applied for a construction permit to build a 50,000 watt transmitting
plant. The construction permit was granted November 17, 1931, but the location for the new
transmitter was not specified. On February 10, 1932, another construction permit was
granted, authorizing a 50,000 watt transmitter for stations WHO-WOC at Mitchellville,
lowa.

In April 1932 the WHO studios moved from the Liberty Building to new facilities on the
second floor of the Stoner Building at 914 Walnut Street. Construction began on the
Mitchellville transmitter site. Work would take about a year.

On April 22, 1933, the 50,000 watt transmitter went on the air from the Mitchellville site. The
transmitter was connected to a wire antenna which stretched about 750 feet. The antenna
wire was supported by two 300 foot towers.

In May 1933 the WOC studios in Davenport are closed, and personnel from Davenport move
to Des Moines. Among the persons coming from Davenport to Des Moines are
sportscaster/announcer Ronald Reagan. The station is identified as WHO-WOC until
November 11, 1933 (WOC returns to the air as a separate station in November 1934).

The wire antenna system was replaced with a vertical radiator manufactured by Blaw Knox
November 23, 1934. The Blaw Knox tower had a distinctive diamond shape and was 532 feet
tall.

e An application for experimental operation of WHO at 500,000 watts was made in
December 1935. The application was dismissed in May 1938.

o Beginning in July 1937 WHO was authorized to transmit photographs by facsimile. The
experiment continued until August 1940 when it was discontinued. While the process






was technically successful, it did not produce revenue.

WHO moved to its familiar 1040 kHz frequency on March 29, 1941. This was part of a
general realignment of radio stations in the United States, required to comply with provisions
of the North American Radio Agreement.

In 1950 a new Westinghouse 50,000 watt transmitter was installed to replace the RCA
transmitter which began service in 1933. A new tower, designed by WHO engineers, was
erected. The tower is a modified Franklin design. The tower is grounded at the base and
insulated at approximately 390 feet (about half way). Each section of the tower is fed by the
transmission line. The design is intended to maximize the ground signal and reduce nighttime
fading. The tower is 780 feet tall, and at one time it was the tallest structure in Iowa. The
tower continues to be used to broadcast WHO's 50,000 watt signal from "coast to coast,
border to border, and then some." (phrase used on Country Music USA which was on WHO
from 10:30 PM until 5:00 AM during the 1960s, 1970s, and early 1980s). The tower is now fed
from one of two solid state Harris 50,000 watt transmitters. The shell of the Westinghouse
transmitter remains, but it is no longer operable.
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Brief
History

WHO, Des Moines, began operations in April

1924 on 570 kHz with 500 watts. The station
was owned by Banker's Life, an insurance
company which is now known as The Principal.
Company president George Kuhns promoted
creation of the station.

Studios and transmitter were on the top floor of the Liberty
Building at 418 Sixth Avenue in downtown Des Moines.

Kuhns chose the call letters WHO because at the time people
searching the radio dial for stations would ask, “Who is it?”

WHO would identify itself during Bankers Life ownership as, “This
is WHO - Who? - Banker’s Life, Des Moines.”

The song Who from the musical “Sunny” was used as a theme for
the station.

Power was increased to 1,000 watts, and then, to 5,000 watts.
Based upon incomplete records it appears that these power
increases occurred in 1925.

» WHO became an NBC network affiliate on September 27, 1927. By
this time the station was broadcasting from 6:00 AM until
Midnight.
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In 1928 following creation of the Federal Radio Commission
by the United States Congress, WHO was ordered to share
the frequency of 1000 kHz with WOC, Davenport. WOC was
owned by the Palmer College of Chiropractic, and it was the
first commercial station in the state of lowa. Both WHO and
WOC protested the marriage, but the Federal Radio
Commission ordered the two stations to share time on 1000
kHz, each with 5,000 watts, effective November 11, 1928.
1000 kHz is one of the eight clear channels assigned to Zone
4 under the FRC plan and other regulations.

p For about a year the two stations would alternate portions of the
broadcast day. One week WHO would be on during the day; WOC
would be on at night. The next week, the stations would operate
on an opposite schedule.

- Bankers Life left the broadcasting business in 1930 when it sold
WHO to Central Broadcasting Company, an entity formed by B.J.
Palmer and several associates to acquire WHO.

During the early years of control of WHO by the Palmer

interests, experimentation was conduct to allow synchronous
operation of the two stations. Telephone lines connected the
WHO and WOC transmitters. Modifications were made to the
transmitters to improve frequency stability. The two stations






were on the air at the same time, broadcasting the same
programs. There was a serious problem with synchronous
operation, however. Neither station could be heard in an
area about 30 miles wide half way between Des Moines and
Davenport.

While experiments continued with synchronous operation,
Central Broadcasting Company on October 7, 1930, applied
for a construction permit to build a 50,000 watt transmitting
plant. The construction permit was granted November 17,
1931, but the location for the new transmitter was not
specified. On February 10, 1932, another construction permit
was granted, authorizing a 50,000 watt transmitter for
stations WHO-WOC at Mitchellville, lowa.

In April 1932 the WHO studios moved from the Liberty
Building to new facilities on the second floor of the Stoner
Building at 914 Walnut Street. Construction began on the
Mitchellville transmitter site. Work would take about a year.

On April 22, 1933, the 50,000 watt transmitter went on the
air from the Mitchellville site. The transmitter was
connected to a wire antenna which stretched about 750 feet.
The antenna wire was supported by two 300 foot towers.

In May 1933 the WOC studios in Davenport are closed, and
personnel from Davenport move to Des Moines. Among the
persons coming from Davenport to Des Moines are
sportscaster/announcer Ronald Reagan. The station is
identified as WHO-WOC until November 11, 1933 (WOC
returns to the air as a separate station in November 1934).

The wire antenna system was replaced with a vertical
radiator manufactured by Blaw Knox November 23, 1934.
The Blaw Knox tower had a distinctive diamond shape and
was 532 feet tall.

p An application for experimental operation of WHO at 500,000
watts was made in December 1935. The application was dismissed
in May 1938.

p Beginning in July 1937 WHO was authorized to transmit
photographs by facsimile. The experiment continued until August
1940 when it was discontinued. While the process was technically
successful, it did not produce revenue.

» WHO moved to its familiar 1040 kHz frequency on March 29, 1941.
This was part of a general realignment of radio stations in the
United States, required to comply with provisions of the North
American Radio Agreement.

In 1950 a new Westinghouse 50,000 watt transmitter was
installed to replace the RCA transmitter which began service
in 1933. A new tower, designed by WHO engineers, was
erected. The tower is a modified Franklin design. The tower






is grounded at the base and insulated at approximately 390
feet (about half way). Each section of the tower is fed by the
transmission line. The design is intended to maximize the
ground signal and reduce nighttime fading. The tower is 780
feet tall, and at one time it was the tallest structure in lowa.
The tower continues to be used to broadcast WHO’s 50,000
watt signal from “coast to coast, border to border, and then
some.” (phrase used on Country Music USA which was on
WHO from 10:30 PM until 5:00 AM during the 1960s, 1970s,
and early 1980s). The tower is now fed from one of two solid
state Harris 50,000 watt transmitters. The shell of the
Westinghouse transmitter remains, but it is no longer
operable.

--George Davison

Copyright 2002 Clear Channel Broadcasting, Inc.
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BRIEF HISTORY OF RADIO STATION WHO

WHO 18 o merger of WHO, established by tho Bankora
Lifo Coumpany of Des Moines on April 10, 1924, and WOC of

Davonport whioh began broadoasting about May 10, 1922. <& -

They wero veoognized as two of the loading stations in
the Middlo West. In Novomber 19284 both statlons wore
roducod to half time ocach on 1000 ko. after WHO having
broadoast for years on 560 ko and WOC on 620 ko. Hore
than 800,000 lotors of protost woro sent in by listonors
%o tho Federal Radio Commission.

By 1929, WO representod a losn of approximately
$600,000 to the Bankers Life Company end $440,000 to the
Palmor Sohool of Chiropraotio with the result that both
gtations wore transforrod to a now oorporation, the
Contral Broaedoasting Company, on December 31, 1929. Tho
oall lottors wero WOC-WHO. The nsw coupany began an
extensive sories of oxperimonte in synchronization end
both stations begen simultonocous operation on the samo
ohannol in February 1930. Land lines wore used botwoen
Davenport and Dos Moinos at & cost of $40,000 per year
so thet progrens woro originatod from both oltles,
Although exporimentetion was oontinued for throe years
with oxtraordinary outlay in money and engineering,
synchronization of two stations that wero about 160 miles
apart was not satisfactory beoense of tho impoasibllity
of sorving properly a strip midwny botwoen tho two oities
that was about 30 mnilos wide. WOC-WEO were probably the
first radio stations to operate ocontinuously with syn~-
ohronized transmittors.’

During the fell of 1932 end early months of 1933
whon business was at its lowost ebb end bank oredit not
avoiloble beoauso vory bank in Devenport, Rook lalend,
and Moline .was olosed, the Central Broadoesting Company
finenoed and oconstruoted a 50,000 watt transmitter amd -
arrenged for tho rontal of oxoellent modorn studioo dnd
officos at Des Moines. Tho future outlook for sucoess
was so dark that tho two leadirng members of the board of
direoctors reaignod and sold tholr entire stook holdings
to othor mombera of the company.

On April 22, 1933, WOC~WHO bogan operating with
50,000 watts of power on 1000 ko, Call lotters changed
to WHO on November 11, 1933.. A new vertioal radietor
antenne system was construoted Novomber 25, 193!). Now
ground syrtem was comploted April 23, 193%. A HWastorn
Eleotric 110A Program Amplifior was installed February

- 26, 1937.
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Page Two BRIEF HISTORY OF RADIO STATION WHC

Prooticnlly ovory now improvement in transmission
and spoeoh input oquipmoint has been installed by WHO
in order to utilizo its facilitios to Lhe groatost
posslble oxtont.

WHY RADIC STATION WHO IS
SEEKING GREATER POWER....

In tho oerly deys of broadomsting,  facilitios wero
granted to WHO for ithe purpose of furnishing a statewide
service to the oitizens of Iowa. During the past 1i
yoars, prugram servioo and station policies have boen to
fooomplish this purpose and at the ssme time to take
good oaro of looal neods, Des Molnes is the oapital of
the state of Iowa and 13 oconsidored by moat of the
oitizens as tho prinoipal souroe of information in
politioal, sooinl and oconomio matters.

Sooial and economio oonditions aro praotloally the
same throughoat the ontire state. Agrioultursl aotivitios
and oconditions aro vory similar in nearly overy county.
Thero aro no 1lurgo oitloss Dos Moines, tho larpost oity
with a population of 142,559 roproscnts loss than 6% of
tho totanl state population of 2,470,900 peocple.

Iowa is a large state, being ebout 316 milea wide
and 218 miles north and south, The Jansky & Bailoy field
strongth survey of daytime ooverago of WHO presant equip-
mont shows that parts of nine ovuntlos out of the 99 Iown
counties fail to rocoivo a 0.5 millivolt signeol end that
five of the prinoipul oitios ~ Davonport, Sioux City, Clinton,
Counoil Bluffa and Dubuque - do not recolve & 2 millivolt
signal. Other oities within the 0.5 millivélt contour
thet do not reocoivo & 2 millivolt sipnal are Rock Islend,
‘Moline, Kowanoo, Galosburg, St. Joseph, Mershnll, Hoberly,
Quinoy and Anstin.

A oaroful snalysis of 89,570 lotters rsoelved by
WHO in responus to deytimo progrem offers shows that the
peroentage of mail rosponso to numbor of radio families
drops vory sherply in the oountles borderling tho
Missinsippl Rivor on the onst and the Missouri Rivor on
the wost.






Pago Three

A survey basod upon personal interviews of 5000 farm
and small town familios oonduoted ontirely undor tho
supervision of Dr, H, B, Summers of Kansas Stato Collope
with trelinod investigators in j5 alternato oowuntios in
Iowa shows that whoroes the percentage of radio families
1istening most to WHO will average about 70% in the oentral,
north oontral, south, and south-west ocounties, the
poroentage drops to 5 to 16% in somo border counties with
as low ao 1% in Allamekee County ih tho'oxtrome north-cast
corner of tho stato. The average poroontegn of the state
is approximately 50%.

. Tho density of populetion per square mile in Iown
varios from e high of 297 in Polk County whore Des Moineos
is looeted to a low of 2.2 per aquero mile with mrn aversge
of 4}j.5 or about 11 poople per quartar secotion of land in
the state,

Tho density of population in Cook County, Illinois
whoro Chicago is looated is 4,268.1 por square mile; in
Weyno County, Miohligan whore Dotroit is looated is
3,046.7 por squaro mile; in New York: County whioh is
pert of New York City is 8/,877.8 per square milo.

An inoroase of 450,000 watts experimontal powor will
oxtond the WHO daytime signal of 0.5.uillivolt:.about
41 miles bayond 1ts prosent boundaries. This will enable
the station to deliver ansignal of 0.5 millivolt to ald
parts of Iowa inoluding a 2 millivolt signal to the flve
larger oities of Davemport,” Du‘buque. Clinton, Counoil
Bluffs and Sloux City.

This will glve tho broadoasting imlustry an ‘oppor-
tunity to experiment with 500,000 watts of powor in an.
aroa that is primarily egrioultural .in charaoter and
also ono of the most prosperous sootions of the country
as oompared with present experiments with WIN in a ter-
ritory that is primarily industriel in ‘charaotsr and
with a density of population of 163.1 in Ohio and
8908 in Indiansa.

Ll






- A Brief Uistory
of

Nadio Station WO

Deg Mclines, Iowa

Radioc Station WHO woe establishod in tho ooring of 1324 by Bankers LiT'e Compuny,
a lifo insurance comnany with home offices in Des Moines, wlth a power of 500 wetba
tn@ on a frequency of 570 kilocyclos by authorily off the Lesartment of Commerco.
Power was incrsasocd to S000 watts in 192,. Frequancy wes changed Lo 1000 kilocycles
November 11, 1928, and to 1080 kilocyelos on March 29, 1941. Power was increased to
£0,000 waltby in 1933. WO is a 1-A clesx channel station.

At midnight, Friday, Fobruery 1k, 1930, Central liroadeasiing Compony, D. J. Palne
president, became cwncr and operator of WHO, and In 1932 noved the station to modorn
studios mnd edministrative headquarters at 91 Walnut Stroet, Dus Moines, where tho
company now ownsa an onbire gquartor block.

Tho firot rogularly scheduled broadcast from WHO was made April 10, 192k cnd a
daily schedule of 1% hours from 7:30-9 TM wuo ecatabliushed. ter thero woro added
throo short lrondcast periods each day, cne %o five mimutes in duretion, whon markot
and weather roworis were made. One of Lheuso woo arcund 9:k5 AM, the gecond around
12 Noon end Lhen at 3 ot¢lock in tho afternoon. Original studion of WHO vera on tho
1lih floor of tho Tiberty Building, whero tho inuuranco comgruy had Lhe sixdh Lo the
sleventh Tloora. ’

'the nort develogment wes sharing the frequency with HOC-Davenport. Ono day wWilo
would broadcast from 6 AM to Hoon, then WCC would tzke over Hoon to 6 M, mnd dback te
WHO for 6 M %o Midnight; tho next day wap junt ithe reverso wi Lh Wi0 tatdng the Hoon
o6 T hitch. From February 1930 to Aoril 1933, W), Des Moines and W0C, Davennort,
verce synchrenized, a poleworthy onglaoering achicvomonl, broadsosting oimeltsncovaly
under the cull lettors, WCC-WUO. Shortly Lherenftor pover waa increagod to 52,000
watts, the now trenamiiter was builb o mile pouth of Miltchellville, minchecn milea
casl of Des Moincs, ond WHO and WOC woro diveseoé. In bhe fell of 1u3h a new 532 foot
vertical redfiztor santerna was bullt.

in LYY W0 beceme alfiliated with the National Brozdearbing Comunny zadl broad-
cast frem 6 AM uniil midnight dadly.

In the carly deys thero were spocial broadcasta at % AM "For Lonécn” or “For
Honolnlu;" and the vtation hed linos into all the lnrge hotels in Des Moines to pick
up dance ovands.

At one tinmo, Guorge Kuhng, tien mrcsident of Bankera Life Cumvany, ofisxrod o
pound of corn swinr o each lostener vho wrete in. Tae offor woo made on Littlo Juck
Little's progrum, and more than 160,000 Listoners ansvored. W0 wished corn sugar
had. never been mentioned.

From Dr. F. L. Vhan's Iowa Radlo Avdience Survey, waich in 147 intorviewed
8,062 radio femilieo, or 1 out of cvery 81 radio hemes, we glean Lhe following bite
of information: 1n Town peoplo apend four howrs listening Lo the radio for cvory
hour soeut reading novapajers, magezinos oid books cambiped; WO vna romed an the
station "Tdstened Lo Moat" in daybime by 47.7%, nipghttime, $0.45; VIO wae nmeed au
the station "icord Regularly® in daytine by 18.95, nighli!ne by 80.5.

A five yenr ytndy of WHO'a public morvice broadeasts in weoace tine, prior to the
war, ¢ owed on average Tor the lve yearn was 324 oi all proadeest time fevoted to
wblic aoreice brosdeasting...Pio inclndes toduy puch jaegrams as the Yeteiang Feam,

Towa ndiuble, elo.
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WEO has s news depariment mnique and ocutstending in its organizalion and
cperction; WHO hod one of the first farm servico depmriments in redio, organized in
1936, and « rodel for meny similer deparitments at other radio atationo.

W0 haa ono of tho lorgesl talent ataffo of all independent radio stations, made
up of persons who excel in thelr particular talonts, persons who have had ycars of
atudy, and aro graduates of tho college of cxnerience. "his ataff ig presentod in
mony houwn of "live” vrograms through the wook and appeurs aach Saturdey nizht in the
Temous Towa Bara Danco #Mrolic.

Tho Iowe Barn Deance Frolic wao originated e3 a half-howr Satwurday night show in
Davenport, Teara, in 1931. After a soasen in Davonport it wap moved Lo Des Moines
vhoro & 1300-scot houso, Tho Ireaident Theater, soon proved inadoquato to accormodate
the awdiences. The show was expanded to a thros-nomr irofluction amd In the tall of
1935 moved to Shrine Auditoriuwm, now Radlo Thoator, whore tho 4200-seatu have besn
filled and the SHO hung out on more than one cccasion to take care of the thronga
that come end pay Lo vee the broadcant. Tho show has grown from a half-lour wroductior
to a lwo-hour snd fiftoon minute sloge show and broadeasst. Moro than a million poodlo
have wltneuged hroedeast of' the Yowa Rran Dance Frolic.

WHO will stage the Sixth Annual WHO Plowing Match and Soil Congervation Field
Pay ikie Scptember in Dallas county. Talv event wes wmed by Dr. Ilugh H. Bennobb,
chiel’ of U, B, Lolly Conservotion Servico, Washinglon, D, C. us "the moat important
thing thai has talken place on Amorican farm lands for 350 years." And the same
event won for WIO the 1946 Dupont Radio Award.

In January WO hold the 11th anmual Cowvn Festival...last swmier WHO called upon
listencry to aid the flood striclken peonlo of souwthern Iuwm, and 6222 remitiances
totallod $96,%20.16.....5uch yeax WO cooperates in rurel fire prevention, soonsoring
a conteat ror rurel aschools....The War Service #illbonrd wan instrimontal in
disseminaling vital vor informatlon to the neople; and sold Wor Bonds 5o a valus of
$6,153,500.00 to more then 25,000 invegtors in U6 stutes, 3 territorion emd the
District of Columbia...WHO acceptod no moaoy for time, Llelent or programs in tho wur
oifort, bul if timc glven to the programs in the wayr offort had been sold, it wouwld
kave had cash value of $1.,161,558.50.

Eundreda of destitute parsons in the war torn comtries of Europo have roeson ic
e glud there io = WHO with 1ts thousands of fr-icndly listonors.' As of Mexch 26, 1647
15,109 individuals and grouus in the WO listening Tamily had sent more than 4,301
vackagon, weighing better than 28 tona, containing reliel items, principally clothing,
to Europoann whanse namen wero colloctod and sont to the WHO Hows Durseu for distripu-
tion to listencrs who sent packages direct. Postage expenoe along, peid by thoe
sendors, totallsd more than $61,000.00.

WO hiy prowvn From a gtaff of five perpons with 500 watlts at Choir lingertipg to
n 50,000 watt clear channel station with a payroll of neurly 150. Of the 15C plua
reroons on the WEO payroll, in Dos Moineo, Pavenport and Mitchellvillo, todoy 32 are
colloge grutwsteo, oix have masters' degrees, 29 arse college trained, five have
busincas college traiuing, three aro attending school and 3C heve opecial radio
training.

FHD alaff's accwmlalcd Know-how is alericé Lo lie wnlimited horizona in redio

and Lelevision. WHO-FM weat en tho alr Fobruury 1, 198; and W0-TV is in advanced
planmaing asege in cusmor of 10W8.

3 July 148
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Ladio Alation YHO wis established yn Lhe spring of 192% by Hunkers Life Company,
a 1ife Lesmernee company with home offices in Des Meines, wvith a power of 500 watts
and on a2 frequency of 570 kilooyeles by authority of the Depariment of Commerce.
Powel wag increascd Lo 5000 waltts in Y925, Freguency was changed Lo 1000 kilocyeles
Huverbeor 11, 1928, and to 10k kilocyedles on Mavch 29, 19451, Power wns increased Lo
50,000 vatts in 1933, WUHO is & l-a clear channel station.

Wwhnl do Lhe ¢all lettere W 1L O stand for? 'Thas 4o o frequent
question. Kr. george Kohnk, president of Benkers Life Company
when 1t established the radio station, was o "DX" or long dis-
tanee listener. Because listerers when Luning in o distant
stations would alweys ask “"Who is it?", he thought that W H O
would be very appropriate station eall letters. TInciderntally,
the: song "Who' from Lhe zusieas "Bunny" was used fOr many yeonrs
a4 o stasnion thome song.

AL midpigat, Friday, Februery 14, 193, Cenlral Brondeasting Company, Col. B..JJ.
talmer presidenl, bocane owacr ané operator of WHO, and in 1932 moved the station Lo
modery studics and admipistrative headguorters at 914 Walaut Street, Des Moines, wherc
Lhe company nrw owns an ertire guarter hlock.

Mhe Ficet reqgeiarly cchedeled bBroddeast Peon WO van mide April 10, 1925 and o
dai.ry schedule f 4 e from 7130 Lo 9 PH owns cesteblichaed,  lLeter there were added
Lthree short bheoadesnt gerinds caed day, onc to lMNive mindes in dwrelion, when market
apd weatnor roparts were made. Ope of thoense was arcund 9:4%9 AM, GLhe sccond around
12 Hoon snd ihen st 3 o'elock in the aflernoon.  Origisal studios of WHO werc on the
11tk floos of the Liberty Bullding, where the inseranee comprny occupied the sixlh to
the oteventh fiacrs,

Tamed lately after the vurchese of ¥IH0 by Central Brosdensting Company, the
stamion beger a poried of shardwes the (requemcy with Wot-bavenport, rirst station
wess o1 Lhe Missiusnippl, @which was established by 8. J. Palmer in 1922, Onc day WHO
vould breadensl trom 6 A% to Hoen, Ehen WOC would take over Noon Lo G PM, and back to
WO From 6 LY Lo Midnight; the nexb doy was just the reverse with WHO teking the Noon
t0 6 I hileh. Fram Februoary 1930 to Apri) 1933, WHD, Des Moines and WOC-Davenport,
were synchronized, i noteworthy ciprineering achicvement, broadeasting simaltancously
under Lhe eall lotters, WOU-WIHO.  Sherily  thereafter pover wes inereased to 50,000
watts, the new sranspiftor was adlt 2 mile south of MihcueALVix]e’ aineteen miles
enst of Den Moines, and wEQ and WCC wore divoreed. In the full of 1934, a 532 foot
vertical radiator antennms wes built.

On Februnry L, 1948, Central Broadeasling Company added another form ot radic
transiission to LLs service, thel of Frequency Modnlatica. On thet day, WHO-FM went
on the sir with o ropnler schedule of programs from 3 to 9 PM éaily. In April,
WHO-"M revised its schedule o duplicate all WHO programs belween the hours of 9 AM
and 11:30 PH. ‘The FM tranzmilter, a 3 kilowatt unik wilh Y kilowatt ERP, was houscd
in Ghe tower stop the K uitsble Fuilding and reached by clevator, six Tlights of
slairs end one ladder...with expericnces and tales which make Tor good "remenber
when' conversation. ‘Ihis interim operation was disecontinued on May 25, 1950.

To July 19:9, Central Proadeasting Compuny purchased tuo new transmitters, &
50,000 watt AM tronsmibter to roplnee the unil inslalicd in 1933; and a 50,000 watt
M troncmitler with elffective radisted power ob ha0,000 wells. A4 the same time,
Lhe company purchascd a nev ((80-oot stecl anternn which includes an AM radiator,
which supports a 1P-hey FM radistor, which will be Lopped by the 1V antenna whoen TV
comes Lo WHO Lid Des Moiuses. The quarler-million dollar investment wos mde in Tull
recornition of reaspousibility Lo sorve the rublic interestl.
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The new AM tronsmitier wng placed in service at 5:28:23 AM February 6, 1950;
WHO-FM vetwrned Lo the 2ir December 6, 1950, duplienting WHO prorxrams, and on
Jamiry B, 1951 established n regular schedule for separate programming between the
hours of 2 and 5:583 PM daily. The old 532'was Laken out of service following sign-
off on Sundiay night, October 6, 1950; and the new 780 foot tower was initinted
bepiuning with program service at 5:30 AM Monday, October 7.

The new tower, desipued in WHO laboratories over a period of five yenrs planning
and proving, dwarfs its 532 fool predecessor with its 780 toot reach into the sky.
There are 13]% tons of nloel ln the structure, B800 pounds of steel in each of the
3 top guy wircs which measure 1 5/8 inches ceross; and 3160 pounds in each of the
three Lower guys measuring 1 1/8 inches acrosn. These guys, pulling the Lower spug

against the earth on a 1-foot square insulator, pive the new Lower a "thrust weight”
of k23,890 pounds.

The new eguipment was deaigned Lo increase WHO's niphttime primary coverage,
and to imvrove scrviee Lo listeners already within the primary coverage area by
pushing Lhe "tading zone” far beyond its old boundnrics and by intensifyirg the
pground signal from WHO Lo Listeners within the area. The nev equipment ig designed
to increasc daybime listening Crom (3,000 sguare miles to 125,300 square miles, or
an increase of 52,300 square miles. (The area of State of lowa is 52,680 square
miles.) Populzbtion served increases from 3,162,400 under the old equipment to
6,096,300 - or an inercase of 92%. Lhe skywave contour of 0.9 millivolt sigeal has
a radius of (G0 miles, ns comparcd to 687 miles by the oid enquipment. Distant
1ielenors wili be ndded by Lhe shyvave also, as the 0.1 millivolt eignal is extended
feom o radius of 1702 miles by the old equipnent. to Y00 by the navw.....and 1400 miles
reaches south Lo the sonthern border of Tezxas, north to Lthe northern tip of Lake
Wimmipeq, to Suatemn iniand on the Fast - and just west of Sailt Lake City on the
Weat - as Lhe crow flics, .. dlince WHO is a clenr channel station, Lhis entire
coverage can be realjued.  And by the time thoese potent wilts bouwnce ofi" the night-
oo Heswviside loyer, Lhedr veflections are picked up hy ligtenera st sea, on Wake
Tslund, in England and around the world . .as cvidenced by the volum: of sail
throughout World War 1l when fown scrvicemen  reported hearing Lhe Voice of the
Mlddle West nt sea amd abroad on standard listening egquipment.

The hard cold statistics show the folks al WO that there are 6,096,300
potentinl listeners in our enlarged back yard. GCold stalistics that represent
individual hunan beiapgs whose liviog, standards and testes run the gamut of Lhe social
senle. Only with o loyal) following of a vast majority of thus wnss a large percen-
tapc of the time does a station with the power and prestige of WHO jusiify itu
existence. ‘thay are the lifce #and blood of a broadcaster. Without liusteners, ther:
would he no reasou Lo broadcasi, entertaimment,, information and education. Tt is the
potential of millions of listeners, their fidelity, that a sponsor buys when he buys
time on WiQ. To those listeners, cuch and avery one, WO and its staff merbers have
a preat responsibility - & responsibilily for unimpaired technical service, for sound
moral program principnls, for inteprity and honesty in the information it dissemi-
nates.

The Iowa Rndio Audicnce Survey - the lith of which was made during March 1951

by Dr. F. L. Whan and his slalf - is considered the outstanding eudicnce tabulation
in the radio industry. WHO's contlnuing study of the redio andicnece, its listening
hatits ond desires, is considered one of the great contributions Lo the broadcastiog
ipdustry in its never-cnding attempt to sound out, analyze, and satisfly thc listeners.
The continuing study shows a rnpid incrcuse in rrdio ownership, and a vast increase
in the number of homes with wmorce than one sct. At the nnme time, the radio picturc
in Towa refleets the inerease in Lthe number of stautions in 1Oh2 18, to h8.in 1951,
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Tan 1590 jowas Hadio Aucdicnce Durvey intervieved 9,215 radio familles, or 1 oul
S ewery f6 hores.  WHO was named ns the station "Listened to Mest” in daylime by
TiLUE, aignlLine, 43,99 Wil0 was pemed as the slation “Heard Regularly"

cpey

in daytime hy
[0 850 Lo sime by (7.5
A Tive year stody of WHO's public gervice brosdeasts in priace bLime, prior to
vorld war Lf, showed en average or Lhe Tive years wan 32% of all broadennt time
Asyateai Lo public service srotdeasting This inciludes today such programs as [owa

D °
Foundlable, Des Moines church nerviees, the Billborrd, and programs by Lhe American
lagion, ¥FE, dmvels and DAV, During poeriads of notional ecmergency, Lime for publie

servics brosdeasts is greatly increased in the interest of retional seeurity,
rtornmlion aad reeruitment ol manpover.

WL has a nows deparlnent unique and ontstanding in its orgnﬁiz&tinn and epero-
Lion., Tis writers and breadeasbers ase trained in hevs. They have acenss Lo more
Leasnen wire aerviee Lthan any olhoer shaelion between Chicapgo and the woest caash, served
by Unized Precs, Associoted Press and Interrat’onal News Serviee. The covernéa 9
vewa and asrhhern Hissouri 18 bodstesed by a sltaft of (O reporters who caver loeal
nharie:s, felephoning or Lelcgraphing the it reports for newscuslhy.
opeC rallien siace World War iT, hes proven iteclf in o nuwher of
pfaing UG news & superior service.

‘this oystoem, in
seanps oha tive-beats,

WiN hael ore of the £irst farm service departmecals in radio, orgarized in 1936,
ard ¢+ meded for many cimilar departoents at osher radio atalbions. Throush 1Ls tarm:
airvice deparloent, the station has ploneored continually in Lhe iatercsts of soil
corscrvation. 1t inougurated vhe £011 Cornscervition Field Day in 195 witl. a day-

Tone, sdenonstralion of conservalion melheds ond resullond rebuillding of Sho subject
Corm. Whis event altracted more they: 0,000 specletor:s Tt war describoed by br. Hugh

p s

" st important thing thab has taken place on Americnn Tarm Yands Cor 390 years."”
Thin event won for WHO the 19:6 butont Radio Avard, the Pulitzor yprize ol the cther
ynvon.  Tae Duionl Award was prosented Min recognltion end cppreciation of oubshand-
iar public serviee in encouraying, promoting nnd developing Americsn ideals of
frocdom and for loyal, devoled sarviec ta the nation ad Lo the communibty it nerves.”
Yige Cnoem service department has been iastrumernltal in plecing lown Y-l activities avn
Lhe el oo the nation, end ilc highlipghiing of Towa sericultural cvent: has Loeen o
animutus to #ll agricultural producers in the state whiieh proved itaell’ the "bread-
Saskon ur Lhe world quring end sinee Woerld War LI, '

1. Teraetd, then ebief ol Ul S. $S0ils flonservation Burviec, Yashington, D. . as

HO has one of the lorgesl talent stat?s of 211 independent radio stations, made
up ol persons who excel in Lheir particular tnleats, persons who have hil years of
shudy el more yeurs of expericnce.  ‘'This sielf was formed as the fouadation ror ihe
cust of the famous 2-hour Towa Larn Dance Prolic heard eanch Saturday night on WHO,
and umits and §ndlviduals arc heard throughout the week in "live” programs of shorter
dura.ion.

‘the [owa Barn Dance Frolic was originaicd es e half-hour Saturdny aight show in
Davenport, Towa, in 1931. After n ceason in Davenport it was moved Lo Dos Moines
vhere a 1300-ceat house, The Presidont Thenter, soon proved inadequate Lo cocomno-
date the audicnces.  The show was cxpanded to a threc-hour production snd in the rnll
of 123 moved to Sihrine Auditorinm, now gadio Thealer, where the W2CO-conls woere
1i11le¢d zad Lhe SRO hung out on mors than one occasion, to tuke crre of the throngs
shal waated to come and pay to see the hroadeusl.  For Lhe past. Lhree seasons, Lhe
chow s been taken Lo towns in lowas on 2 ranver of vecasions, broadcasting on
Saturday aiphts from special cventc in the locol cowmunities. 1In recent weeks, tac
show played a sSeries of Saturdey nights in the 3] Club audfLoriwa on lows Htnbe Fait
Grounds, wilh square dancing following the broadenst, antil midnight.
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in 197, WIO asked 1ts Yisteners Lo 2id the floed slricken people ot southorn
P, aned DPYF remitlanaes totalled $90,520. 16, . The War Cerviec Billboard wis irsiou-
mentel iu disseminating vital war snformation Lo the people; and sold War Bonds ho &
vielue of §6,153,:06.00 Lo more than 25,000 icvestors In h6 staten, 3 territorics :na
the Nisteven of colunbia. . . WHD acvepled no moncy (or time, Lelent, or programs
iy the war ofort, but if time given to the preframs in the war aoffort lnd heen soid,
it wouid feive el cogh value of $1,161,558.50.

The war Lett multiludcs of destitule persons in Lhe countries of Burope.

Huno-
reds of thece neuple have given thanks to WHO and its beneficent. listeners. Morc

than 17,051 individuals and groups in the WHO )4stening Tamily have sent more than
241,000 packages, weighing more than 1,430 bons, containing relief itewms, principally
clotiin,, 1o Buropeans whose mame: Were collected and scnt to the WHO News Bureau

for Aistributron to listeners who scul packuyes direct. Postnge cxpense alone -

prtid by Lhe senders, WO Listeners - totalled more than $390,000! ‘ihe packages wer
bundlos of dencoracy, and they wenl to Greece, italy, France, Germany, Rorway, Owoden,
‘he He-herlands, and Bopland . . JPhe leltoers of gratitude revenl conditions such ns
Ame-ricans have never knowi,

1A
e fiect Chooostmas that the Salvation Army in Des Moines w#will not huve S0 refass
acsistanee Lo a denerving femily. This year wo have enough mopcy Lo provide for
4il."  Tliw woney - ‘enough’ - cime Sroin Lhe pennies, dimns and dollaru comtribuled
by the sam gonoroas [olks who had resuoaded S0 the call bhefore - the WHO listoner -
in reaioanse Lo WHO's Tree of Lighss compaign tor Lie Salvation Army. ‘The poal for
Lhe 1949 Christmas tund was $10,000, and £15,%1.15 was collected; in 1930,
$17.711.50 wan raisod. Money over and above the Chrisbrns budget puid expensos of
noedy wothers and their childarcn in Julvation firmy Summer CiLf.

Gre Christras Fve, 1989, the Salvidiion Army Commauder for tows snid, "his in

i avring - or during the belatid winter of 1956-51 - WHO was called upon bY
orennt notions and groups in itz listening arca for assistance when Lhe snovs, e
lizeweds paralyzed the state. WHO broadeast withoul charge, belveen March 10 and
Baret 98, 2,794 public service annowncenchls regarding mecting cancellations and
schonl +iosings. I these announcemenths had Leen zold as chninbrenks they would have
cosl e arprovimate total of $L55,'(h0; a5 onc-minute nnoouncements, they would have
st an oppraxomate total ol £021,630. fHiovernl wecks later, a letler Prom o rester
prinbod an the Tas Moines Register, siid, "WHO eeriainly descrves a word of spprect -
atiun for ilo public scrviee during our recent snowstorm.  Dgn'i any of you cver
think Lhat you will get the seme service everywherc in the U. 5.

WO added an intensive achedule of sports broadcasts to its cchedule in the
apring of 1949, 8inpce that tiac the stalion has glven extensive covernge to high
schoo! zports, with nbout 300 high school reporters, including studentns, coiches aru
townupeople, giving WHO delniled reviews of sports aclivities, and up~Lo-the-pinute
toleuhone reports of scores on baskelbnll and football. The sports program his
always included the bvig nunes ol the profcssionul sports world; comprehengive
voverage oy interview and reports of Big Ten football and basketball, nnd a continn:ing
service in the interests of fish and pame conservation with 1ts coveraye of l'ishing
aad unling.

Dhas Lowa Otate Fair is site of" WHO bLroadensts fow more than o week cach Aarusl
this yenr the falt opens on Auguzt 25 and runs throogh Labor Dy, September 3 - when
locnlly produced progriuns originute in the WO Tent just across Grand Avomu: from Lhe
fAmphithenter.  Literslly thouninds of persons pack Lhe couvas top thromhnoul. the day
to nee and hear Lheir favorite entertainers. WilI0 is happy to mect the Tolks from he-
yond the microphones each year; and the Towa ftage fuir Board is high in ils praise
of the publieity and interest ercated by Lhe hroadezats from Lhe wain thoroughfore -
for WiO takes everythiing but the arums off the Midway to its listeming nndicnee, and
beTere the rair cnds, many i person who was home in bis easy chair the rirst day ic
Ci1ise Lhrouish the admission e to Jjoin Lhe thron.






The WHO payroll supports a Tamily ot 394 and this family drives 93 automcbiles
ard ouwns - or is buying - 8B homes. Theiv hobbies arc diverse, their intercsts koen,
nnd they continue leerning more cach -day about the business of radio.

The 139 persons on the WHO payroll Loday in Mitchellville, Des Moines and

N _venporl represenl an accumulation of 1409 years in Lhe broadeasting industry -
which iteelf is only 29 years old. Of ihis total, 1159 of the years have been with
WHO.  OF ihe 139 on the staff Loday, 36 arce college pgredunles, four have advanced
degrees, @h hove college brainding, 4% ligve sperinl radio training and 9 have tusi-
ness Lrainings B0 have becn wilh the station more than 10 years. ‘the WHO stnff's
accunulaled krow-hew 18 alerted to Lhe unlimited horieons which are radio's s well
as telovislon's.

Many n WHO home boosts o Lelevizcion scrial, forr these (elks in radio lock for-
werd Lo thee day when, as e perl ol il WO family, they will be working before the
camerns curl Beliind the seenes of the vewer mediwe; they are preparing for the advent
o WHO-Y, whiel al this weiting is st least L8 monine away. Heanwhile, mony Wi
stafTers are paining cxpericnec in lhe osperation ol WOC-IV in Davenport, operated
by Central Broadeaslingg Combany.

WHO bhas been gititicten with the nation's
munber one nehworsn, Nalional Breosdeasting
Compuy, sinee 3oplonber b, 1927,

orvicers of Contral Broadersling Company ore Col. B. J. Palmer, Presideni;
D. D. Palmer, Viece President and Treasurer; Ralph Svang, Bxeculive Vice Presidoeat;
Paul, AL Toyet, Vice Presidant and Residentl Fenager; and §Hilliam D. Wegnoer, Geerc-
tary. W. W. Woods js Ausictant Moirnger; Rred Snyder, Chiet Mnginear; Harold W.
fulton, Soles Menuger; Jack Kerrigan, Progrum Directar; Roboert H. lorter, Ruepional
Bnics Manaper; Kenucth Gfeller, Produclion Manager; Jnek Shelley, WHO Weus Bureau
Mannger; and Herb Plombeck, Wil0 Farmn Gerviee Direclor.

1 June 1951
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MEMORANDUM

April 5, 1962
Dave Palmexr
Dear Dave:
Here is-the history.
Ajso ‘en’é,l:osed-in my gersoadl copy of "Iutetesnting Sidelights"
which mi\iy be helpful on some detnils. The two'glosey prints
were reproduced -in our photo lab from pictures in'the book -and
I.believe this.technique can be used for any piectures ‘in‘the book [
if the original prints cannot be found, :

I would like very much to have this book returned to me.

Thank you. .
Sincerely,

Paul A. Loyet i






March 28, 1962
History of WHO - WOC

The Central Broadcasting Company, an Iowa Corporation, came into
being in February of 1930, It was created expressly to effect the purchase
of WHQ, Des Moines, lowa and merpe its operations with WOC, Davenport,
fowa. Eiach of these entities had been granted share timne opcration on a
clear channel assigned the State of lowa in a general reallocation of radio
facilities by the Federal Radio Commisaion in November 1928.

To gain a clear pictare, then, of its officers, direclors, policies, and
g;eueral operations, we should appraise the histories of both stations WOC
and WHO.

WOC was started in 1921 and completed in February 1922 by the Karlowa
KRadio Company of Rock Island, Tllinois. A federal license to operate under
the call lctters WOC was issued this company on February 18, 1922.
Although its predecessor 9BY had been doing somc special broitdcasting
for some time before on a DeForest transmitter with a so-called 5 watt
rating, a new DeForest transmitter with a thousand watt input and about
two hundred fifty watts output was installed under the new permit. This unit
was operated only about five months in Rock Island and at such expensc that
Karlowa looked about for a purchaser. ‘The pioneering work was so beclouded
with uncertaintics, and required such technical knowledge and accompanying
expense hazards the takers were few and cventually the Palmer School
of Chiropractic was contacted to assume the load of such pioncering
magnitude. At this stage of radio history even the thought of remuneration
or profit was almost ridiculous. After considerable thought and somc
misgivings the principals of the Palmer School of Chiropractic finully agreed

to assume the task and in May 1922 the license was transferred from the
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Karlowa Radio Company to the Palmer School of Chiropractic, with the
permission of the Department of Commerce, and the equipment was moved
to the property of the Palmer School, 1002 Brady Strect, Davenport, Iowa.

Even with the time's carly use of low frequencies the scrvice arca of
this cquipmecent was deemed inadequate by the owners; and a new Western
Electric 500-watt transmitter was installed, with the permission of the
Department of Commerce, in July 1922,

It is an important historic item to note that at this ‘stage in radio only
the following broadcasting stations werc rendering scheduled public services,
covering market and weather reports, music, concerts, lectures, etc., to-
wit: WWJ, W57, WOU, WGII, WOz, WMH, KIZ, WFO, WHQ, WLD, WIIA,
WOQ and WOC.,

This list appears in the United States Department of Commerce Radio
Service Bulletin -- Government publicition #59. In view of present legal
requirements of public intercst, convenience and necesnity, the above list
contributes valuable information as to the view of the U.'S. Government
authorities in determining and designating the radio stations voluntcering this
carlicst public service, which is now a legal requirement, It is quite as
interesting to note the limited number of survivors of 'this group of pioneers.

In addition to the regular program transmissions, WOC as carly as 1922,
under a special call AZ-3, was rendering a daily service to the United States
Army Posts at Rock Island and Fort Sheridan and dcsignated as a part of the
Army network since the Army had no station in the immediate area. WOC has

a prized complimentary and thank{ul acknowledgment of this service to the
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United States Army from the then Comminding General of the U, S. Army
Signal Corpy, General Charles McK. Salteman who later became Chairman
of the Federal Radio Commission,

The trail was blazed by the covered wagons and no word picture can
make it impressive or realistic to the present passcngers who have since
climhed aboard Air-lancs Unlimited.

As to the service rendercd by radio stations it is to be assumcd that the
predeccssors of the Federal Communications Commission, namcly the
Dcpartment of Commerce and the Federal Radio Commission, continually and
carefully reappraised the early service of radio broadcasting stations. From
the inception of radio down to the present moment insofar an the State of
lowa is concerncd, WOC and WHO have always been recognized as rendering
an outstandingly acceptable service.

WIIO was established in the spring of 1924 by the Bankers Life Company,
a lifc insurance company with home offices in Des Moines, with a power of 500
watts and on i {requency of 570 kc by authority of the Departinent of Commerce.
Power was increascd to 5000 watts in 1925, Operating llu.arters and studios
were located in the Liberty Building, Sixth and Grand Avenues in Des Moines,
and ail equipment used was Western Electric, as was that at WOC in Davenport.
This fact led later to an easier nolution to the synchroaizationof the two stations.

In the general reallocation by the Federal Radio Commission on November 1
1928, WOC and WIIO were the two lowa radio stiations selected to occupy a

cleared channel. The lowa quota rated approximately one cleared channel and
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thess two stations wcere assigned to it, dividing time. WOC had been operating
since the fall of 1924 with 5§ KW on 620 KC unlimited and WIHIO since carly 1925
with % KW on 570 KC unlimited, They were assigned 1000 KC and cach to
operite with 5 KW,

Accepting this predicamcent, WOC sought to cveolve a solution whereby the
penilty imposecd upon the respective listening audiences might be lessened.

‘The solution required extensive investigation and considerable cngineering
sxpenge, but comparcd with the original pioncering effort was just one more
problem to be solved. The first obstacle, an cngineéring one, was partially
solved Ly experimental confirmation of the feasibility of assynchronous operation.
This confirmation led to the secoud problem, the diversificd interests of the

two stations. This was met by bringing about a consolidation of the two

stations under the common ownership of the Central Broadcasting Company

which wits organized early in 1930 and which action was approved by the

Fedenl Radio Commission about February 15, 1930.

It might be pertinent Lo point out that at the time of purchasc of the two
stations by‘the Central Broadcasting Company, the combinecd stations .reprcsented
a totalloss of about $1, 040, 000, $600, 000 by the Bankers Life Company and
$440, 000 by the IPalmer School of Chiropractic. These figures would be
impressive today but were considerably more fearsome in 1930 when the
country was in an extremecely grave deprcssion with half the nation's banks
closied or in near panic,

So'grave had this situation become that public subscription to Central
Broadcasting Company stock was sought uver WOC by Central's head, Dr. B. J.

Palmer, on Sunday, December 22, 1929, He urpged the friends of WOC who were
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in position to do so, to subscribe for stock immediately, since the option
on the Des Moines station, WHO, had to be exercised by January 31, 1930,
The Daily Times, Davenport, lowa, in an editorial #¥ednesday, December 25,
1929, commentced, ""The joys of Christmas in thousands of homes in this
scction of fowa and Illinois would have been enhanced by the broadcasting
through WOC of the feature programs arranged for last evening and today.
But this time belonged to WHO at Dcs Moines, with whom WOC shares a
clear channel, thercfore the local station had no time until 5 PM today.
This situation, no fault of cither station, deprived many listeners of this
locality of such reception as makes for the fulleat enjoyment of radio
entertainment, The expericnce lends emphasis to the communal interest
in the project which has bcen {formulated to merge the two leading fowa
stations and to synchronize them in a manner which will permit both WIIO
and WOC to have full time on the air. "

Further along in the same editorial, the following quotation appeared,
"Community interest should elicit a most favorable response to the bid for
financial support which Dr. Palmcr addreases to our pcople. The pleasure
to be derived from radio is heightcxfcd by proximity to a station of its high
type. WOC has given this city nation-wide advertising of a value far in exccess
of the amount which is sought in order to exercise the option on WHO. "

The finaucial response to this offcring was not heartening. Many loyal
citizens responded by purchasing a few shares but the real load of financing
remained with the Palmer School of Chiropractic owners. Of the $480, 000
{of $500, 000 authorized) offered to citizens, officers, und employees of the
corporation, 272, 000 shiares were never issued. The new company was financed

on a rather minimum basis by the owners of WOC and a handful of Davenport's
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more affluent busincssmen and the option taken up on WHO within the time
limit desigaated,

During the formation of the Central Broadcasting Company, continuous
experimentation had been done at Davenport, using a closed circuit techaique,
to determine the feasibility of a synchronous operation of the two transmitters
at WOC and WIIO using dircct crystal control on each transmitter. The
Western Electric transmitters in usc depunded on bi-metalic thermostats to
hold a constant tomperaturc on the rclatively unstable cut of cryetals uaed
at that time. In spite of theae imbcdiments. it was determined that the job
could be done by an improved crystal control box utilizing a better type of
more permanent thermostat. Permission for further tests to permit the
simultaneous operation of these two ntations was sought and granted almost
itnmcdiately by the Federal Radio Commission. Collaboration with the Bell
Telephone Laboratories confirmed that such boxes could be made and fitted
to the transmitters involved. The chief collaborator was John H. DeWict, Jr.,
now president of the National Life and Accident station, WSM, at Nashville,
Temmessec. Undcr his supervision, the original Western Electric 700-A boxes,
involving spccial cut crystals and sealed mercury thermostats, were'constructcd
along with more stable oscillator cquipment. This development was to be of
importance to the whole industry in tightening frequency control on the rapid
influx of new stations. Simultaneously a rcmote control unit was developed for
installation midway betwecn the transmitters to feed back a monitoring signal
to Davenport to dircct variation of minute frequency variation to conform with

the carrier of WHO in Des Moines., This equipment was installed in June of 1930.
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In hearing before the Federal Radio Commission, Docket Number 882,
Tuesday, October 7, 1930, on the orviginal application for 50 kilowatts, it was
pointed out that an area of morce than 3000 square miles, approximately midway
"hetween these two stations, was heing deprived of scrvice from either station
which they had rcceived fairly well before. It was shown that a quarter-
million citizens of Iowa, living in this area, werc unable to receive satisfactory
radio service from a clear channel allocated the State of lowa. In addition,
of course, there were impaired reception areas in the state which had not
been adequately served by either station with 5000 watts power. At the time
of this hearing, the synchronization of the two stations had been going on for
over four months. In addition to the difficulties from synchronization from a
mechanical standpoint, il was necessary of course to have identical programs
which meant the virtual climination of local sponsored programs or spot
advertising {rom cithcer Davemport or De¢s Moines. Both stations were operating
under the conditions of a 50 kilowatt without possessing the enlarged service
arca accompanying such power, which - when viewed {rpm an economic
standpoint - was somewhat similar to operating a 5 kilowatt station at the cost
of a 50 kilowatfh The synchronized operation was continued until Apri‘l 1933 when
WIIO-WOC took the air from Des Moines, Iowa {with transmitter at
Mitchellville) with 50 kw. Naturally, during the whole time of synchronization,
and for some time after the advent of 50 kilowatts, the combined stations were
known as WOC-WHO, alternately with WHO-wWOC,

A construction permit for 50 kw one milc south of Mitchellville, Iowa
was granted WIIO-WOC February 10, 1932, and the new single transmilter of
thesie combined stiations took the air on April 22, 1933, Simultancously, of

coursc, both the plant at WHO and the 5000-watt transmitting station at Davenport
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were shul down, although broadcasts continued to be emanited from both

studio locations. It is highly important to note here thut there was no further
transmission from the Davenport location until November 11, 1934, when

WOC went back on the air, utilizing the moved transmission facilitics and license
of KICK - Carter T.ake, Iowa, which waa the only technique then available under
the quota system for gaining a licensc. Until that time, the 50 kilowatt plant with
studios in Davenport and Des Moines operated under the combined call wWOC-W110
alternated with WHO-WOC.

WOC transmitter 5 KW directional, 1420 KC, was moved to ita present
location, north and slightly east of Bettendorf in 1942, FM was inaugurated
October 1948 with a 10 KW transmitter. WOC-TV started telecasting
October 31, 1949 on Channel 5, later being switched to Channcl 6 with maxuimum
power of 100 KW,

‘The original WOC "family'' consisted of

{1) B. J. Palmer, President, {dcceased). Dr, B. J. Palmer - vy g
- probably pione.ercd exactitude in correct pronunciatio? of even rewnote
geographical locations, exact time announcements, and brevity of all
announcements, including commercials (later.)

(2} Dave Palmer, Station Assistant. Dr, David D. Palmer is now the
Pregident and Treasurer of Central Broadcasting Company, owner a.‘rx.d opecrator
of WIIO - AM-FM-TV in Des Moines, Iowa, and its subsidiary, 'I‘ri-C‘i\sy
Broadcasting Company, owner and operator of WOC - AM-TM-"I'V in “.

!
Davenport, lowa. Dr, Dave, as owner, opecrator, and employee, is the only

surviving employee of the original staff.
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{3} Frank #. Elliott, Business Manager. Dr. Elliott was one of the
organizevs of the National Association of Broadcasters in 1922; and served as
an early President, He wasg ilso a member of the Iowa Generil Assembly.
Dr. Elliotl is how a practicing Chiropractor in Denver, Colorado.

{4) Stanlcy W. Barnctt was the original Technical Director and Announcer.

Stan was for yecars General Manager of WOOD - Grand Rapids, Michigan, and

is now a practicing Chiropractor in o » Michigan.

(5) Franklin W, Pierce, Radio Operator and Technician, Mr. Pierce
formerly workerd for Karlowa and moved the equipment to the Palmer School
of Chiropractic in Davenport. He still resides in Rock Island, Illinois, and is
a practicing electronics cngineer,

The oldest employee , in scrvice, is Paul Loyet, Vice President and
Gensral Manager of WIIO - AM-FM-TV, Des Moinces, Iowa, director of both
Central and Tri-City Broadcasting Company, owner and operator of WOC -
AM-FM-TY - Davenport, Iowa, who joined WOC as an sngineer in December 1924,
That December marked the opening of the new Nestern Electric watcr-cooled

5-KW trapnsmitter, then a real wonder of science,
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Original 50 KW CP - No Location

Rencwal at Mitchellville

On air 7:00 PM

New Tower 532!

{WOC Back on Air - Ex KICK)

Experimental Facsimile License
Thru

1000 watt devel broadcast license

150 KW Devel Broadcast Licensc

24-hr Key Cperation start

Z:d-hr Koy Operation stop

Pulse 'rins - 200 KW Pks

Collins Coop

Receiving Direct Antenna tests for
FCC-2 field strength mcters

CP for Nestinghouse AM & T'™™M
New AM on

New Tower

Ncw FM

Present d4-hr Conelrad start

Nov 17, 1931
Feb 10, 1932
Apr 22, 1933
Nov 23, 1934
Nov 11, 1934
July 20, 1937
Aug 1, 1940
Oct 18, 1938 - WI9XC
Jan 20, 1942
Oct 19, 1942
Oct 30, 1943
1947 & 1948

Winter 1948-49

Feb-Mar 1949
Apr 26, 1949
Feb 6, 1950
Qct 9, 1950
Dec 6, 1950

web 2, 1952
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WHO BROADCASTING COMPANWY

HISTORY

The history and expansion of WHO Broadcasting Company from its
beginnings on April 10, 1924 as a 5,000~watt radio station is a
fascinating story. It is a story that reflects a growth in starf
size, facilities and the very best in broadcasting service to the
public...one striving for continued quality and responsibility in
its progranming.

WHO was originally owned by the Bankers Life of Des Moines when
radiv was still considered novel, with statiocns broadcasting
without individual identification. Eventually, the station was
asked to choose call letters., "WHO" was chosen by the company's
maznager in responsec to inquiries of "Who is this?® and "Who are
Wwe listening to?” In 1920, Colonel B. J. Palmer, noted for his
progressive thinking, purchased WHO Radio and plans were made for
expansion. In 1933, WHO was granted an increase in its operating
power to 50,000 watts, making it one of the few stations in the
courtry with such a vast coverage area. The extension In power
enabled WiO to reach the entire Middle West and far beyond,. Mail
was rececived from Maine and Louisiana, remarking how clearly tLhe
signal was received,

To better reach the needs of its far-reaching audience, the WHO
fisdino News Hurenu was created, bringing a profcssionally=~stalfed,
fully=equipped neus cepartment LO e pubire  lu 1335, Decause
259 of all Grade A farmland was served by WHO's extended signal,
the station then established the country’s first farm news
department. Although it started as an cxperiment in 1936, the
Farm Serviece Department quickly becamec a model for others im the
radio Lroadcast industry.

Early listeners to WHO Radio were tapping their feet to the Jowa
Barn Dance Frolic, a 1local program of music and comedy On
Saturday nights. WHO's first Sports Director, President Ronald
Reagan, did playaby=aplay broadcasts of iUniversity of Iows
football games from 1932 to 1937, as well as "remcreations™ of
basebzll games from within the studios. On the scene reports
fvrom newsmen Jack Shelley and Herb Plambeck during World War 1I,
brought firste~hand accounts to the homes of thousands. And the
origination of "Mational Soil Conservation Days®" provided
l1isteners with esgricultural updates and know=how.

after 63 years of service, WHO Radio continues to maintain its
high standards, With comprehensive, awvard=winning news coverage
and programming. 21 updated farm reports are heard daily. and
listeners are able to hear discussions with guests and experts.
Increased sports coverage, ranging from high 3school and college
athletics to professional, brings the best in sports to our
listeners,
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WHO has always prided itself on its involvement with the lives of
Towans. Although much has been written here of the past, the
future holds even greater responsibility,

In 1948, WHO was Joined by its ™sister” station, WHO=FHK.
Broadcasting on the FM frequency, the station offered high school
sporting events, updated newscasts and music. As times changed,
so did the role of FH stations. In 1973, new allasterco
squipment replaced the old and the astation changed its call
letters to KLYF. Adult Contecmporary music can be heard on XLYF
100 FM 24 hours a day in homes, cars, office buildings and
stores,

Oon april 26, 1954, WHO~TV was authorized to telecast on Channel
13 with maximum power. Since its beginning, the station has been
aiffiliated with the NBC network. Early viewers saw local live
programming featuring many of their radio favorites...Slim Hayes,
Jack Shelley, Bill Austin, the Buckaroos, and Herb Plambeck.
"Romper Room™ with Miss Nancy and Duane Ellett and Floppy kept
the youngsters entertained. Network programming was primarily in
the evening, and offered viewers such 3shows as T"Groucho,”
"Dragnet,” and the P"NBC News® with Chet Huntley and David
Brinkley.

As eguipment became more sophisticated, the public ¥was able to
see events of national interest, WHO-TV's first remote broadcast
Wa$ it AWBELSS 1%, eny, from Mest Branch. lowa, where former
Presidecnt He-bert Hoover celebrated his 80th birthcay. The
program was fed through WHO equipment to the NBC network.

Improving and extending the broadcast signal to a larger area
then btccame a goal, In 1972, a ncw 2,000~foot tower and
transmitter were constructed in Alleman, lowa, The new eqguipment
projeccted WiHQO~TV's coverage to a 90=mile radius of Des Moines in
central Jowa.

Numerous awards have been received by the WHO~TV news teams, but
perhaps the most noteworthy was the coveted George F. Peabody
Award, when our photographer was able to capture the formation
and patterns of two tornadoes on film, which had never been done
before.

Television weather has also become more sophisticated in the psst
few years. Color weather radar, Doppler radar and satellite
weather graphics aid our meteorologists at the Weathercenter in
pringing the most comprehensive and accurate weather forecasting
to our broadcast area.

Today, our T"Live Eye” mobile unit enables reporters to tranasmit
their stories live from the scene to the studios and out to the
public. This, plus an enlarged professional news staff, has
further 1increased the reporting reliability of WHO~TV'S
Newscenter 13.






yith an eye to the future, property at 1801 Grand wasd purchased
nnd groundbreaking ceremonies held on April 10, 1981. Now, our
beantiful three~story structure, containing more than 65,000
sgquare feet of office and studio space on 2.5 acreas of land,
nouses WHU Broadcasting Company and the corporate offices for its
parent company, Palmer Communications, Incorporated. The
occupancy of the new building is yet another milestone in the
fascinating history of the company, and opens more doors for
fature growth and added service to the community.

WHO Radio, KLYF~FH and WHO~TV 13 take pride in their past and are
commitLed to providing the best broadcast service possible in
years to come.
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